
 

CC Minutes 03‐15‐16 

 1 

City of Washington Terrace 2 

_________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 4 

Held on March 15, 2016 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 

County of Weber, State of Utah 7 

1. WORK SESSION                                            5:00 P.M. 8 
       Topics to include, but are not limited to: Water Consumption Response Plan 9 

 10 
MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT AT WORK SESSION 11 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 12 

Council Member Scott Monsen 13 

Council Member Blair Brown  14 

Council Member Robert Jensen  15 

Council Member Scott Barker 16 

Council Member Val Shupe 17 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 18 

Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 19 

Treasurer Laura Gamon 20 

City Manager Tom Hanson 21 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez  22 

 23 

Others Present 24 

 25 
Garrett stated that the goal of the work session is to understand the issue at hand and suggestions for the 26 

2016 budget adjustments.  27 

Garrett stated that the revenue shortfall plan has been adopted within the budget document; however it 28 

has been a while since the plan has had to be put into use. 29 

Garrett stated that the billable usage of water has declined and the city relies heavily on overage costs. 30 

She stated that the city may have to readjust how the fees are handled to cover costs. 31 

Garrett suggested that a correction can be done for this year through a budget adjustment. She suggested 32 

using unspent funds for projects that have been closed out to offset the deficits in the water and sewer 33 

funds.  She stated that the deficit can be corrected this year; however, the problem will not go away next 34 

year because the funds are considered ‘one-time monies”. 35 

Council Member Monsen asked if the reason for the shortfall was due to error. Garrett stated that the 36 

trend is that this is the new normal and the City will need to lower consumption projections. She stated 37 

that the billable overage gallons continue to trend down. Garrett stated that if billable overage goes up 38 

higher, the monies can be re-invested into the Capital Water Fund account.   39 

Garrett stated that that the new homes being built will help with the usage; however it will not make a 40 

substantial difference.  Garrett stated that the new Public Works facility is being addressed separately.  41 

Council Member Brown stated that he is concerned that the residents do not fully understand the 42 

challenges of the City. He would like more communication with the residents on the issues that are being 43 

talked about in Council meetings.  He is concerned because the City is fast-tracking the Public Works 44 

Facility and residents are not fully aware of the project. Garrett stated that Council has budgeted some 45 

preliminary money to move forward with the project and it has been built into the 5 year plan. She stated 46 

that the plan is strictly that, a plan, and Council is not bound to any commitments or funding. 47 

 48 



 

CC Minutes 03‐15‐16 

Garrett noted that the rates have not increased for water or sewer in 2 years. Garrett highlighted some of 49 

the costs of capital projects.  She noted that the City relies on capital capacity to accomplish various 50 

projects. 51 

Garrett stated that the options for Council do not include system operations and maintenance costs. She 52 

stated that these will rise almost every year. She stated that the options to be considered are only to 53 

address the issue at hand and how to get back on track. Garrett noted that the options are only estimates 54 

and will be worked on during the budget process. 55 

Mayor Allen stated that sewer rates go up and the cost is passed onto the City. Council Member Brown 56 

stated that the water and sewer cost increases are minimal. Council Member Shupe noted that rates have 57 

increased 48 percent over the last 10 years. He stated that his concern is that residents will be upset with 58 

continual rate increases. Council Member Monsen stated that he realizes there have been increases; 59 

however, he feels that the Council has made a mistake on not increasing rates gradually over the last 2 60 

years. He stated that he understands the concerns of those on fixed incomes; however, he stated that the 61 

City will need to find a way to pay the bills. 62 

Mayor Allen stated that the City must be able to keep funds in Capital to pay for matching grants. 63 

Council Member Brown stated that he would like to raise fees only as a last resort. Council Member 64 

Jensen stated that taking money from other sources can only last so long and eventually an increase will 65 

be necessary. The Mayor stated that current staff and Council have been very frugal and the City is on the 66 

lower end of utility fees compared to cities around us. 67 

 68 
Garrett reviewed the Response Plan Options. 69 

 70 

Option 1 71 
Reducing capital, not increasing user fees: Garrett stated that an option would be taking funds out of 72 

capital. She noted that this only addresses the current shortfall issue. 73 

 74 

Option 2 75 
Increasing all users base rate. 76 

 77 

Option 3 78 
Increasing the base rate and overage rate. Garrett cautioned that this heavily relies on the overage usage 79 

and is a high risk. 80 

 81 

Option 4 82 
Increasing the base rate and also reduce capital. Garrett noted that consumption could increase next year. 83 

She stated that there is not enough good data to make the assumptions. 84 

 85 
Council Member Brown asked the City would be able to give residents more water and raise the base rate 86 

slightly. Garrett stated that she would have to run the analysis. She stated that half of the residential users 87 

go over the 4000 gallons and she is not sure how raising the base gallons would affect overage fees. She 88 

stated that the trend is across the board with residential and commercial properties. Harris stated that the 89 

City had a higher base in gallons in the past and there were many complaints for residents. Council 90 

Member Monsen stated that raising the base gallons would probably hurt the City because we would be 91 

selling more water for less money. He stated that changing the base gallons would not change 92 

consumption. 93 

Hanson stated that this is a major portion of the budget and asked if Council would like a work session to 94 

discuss further. Mayor Allen stated that he would like another work session set quickly. It will be set for 95 

this Thursday at 5:00 p.m. 96 



 

CC Minutes 03‐15‐16 

 97 

MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT 98 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 99 

Council Member Scott Monsen 100 

Council Member Blair Brown  101 

Council Member Robert Jensen  102 

Council Member Scott Barker 103 

Council Member Val Shupe 104 

Public Works Director Steve Harris 105 

Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 106 

City Manager Tom Hanson 107 

City Recorder Amy Rodriguez  108 

 109 

Others Present 110 
Charles and Reba Allen, Ulis Gardiner, Gary Klema, Cathy Dolles 111 

 112 

2.     ROLL CALL                                                 6:10 P.M. 113 

 114 

3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 115 

 116 

4.     WELCOME 117 

 118 

5.     CONSENT ITEMS 119 

 120 

5.1  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 121 

       5.2  APPROVAL OF MARCH 1, 2016 MEETING MINUTES  122 
Items 5.1 and 5.2 approved by general consent. 123 

 124 

6.      SPECIAL ORDER 125 

6.1 PUBLIC HEARING: TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2016 BUDGET 126 
Garrett highlighted some of the major adjustments. 127 

General Fund: Garrett stated that franchise taxes are at a $42,000 decline in projections, due to 128 

telecommunication taxes. She stated that there are strengths in building and planning fees that create a 129 

nice offset to the franchise tax decline. Garrett noted that there is a reduction in the fund balance because 130 

the monies were earmarked for a one time project that did not occur. Garrett stated that employee benefits 131 

decreased because some of the anticipated costs did not occur. She also noted that fuel prices are lower 132 

than expected resulting in a savings in vehicle maintenance. 133 

Fleet purchase: Garrett noted that fleet purchases and sales are balancing each other out. 134 

Water Fund: Garrett stated that revenues for contract services are showing beneficial for the City, 135 

resulting in around $50,000 a year. This is an increase of $10,000 over projections. Garrett stated that 136 

projections in water service charges could be down by $72,000.  Garrett stated that there is lower 137 

overage consumption than originally anticipated. The reduction is proposed to be offset with a reduction 138 

in capital funding. The funding will come from projects that have been closed out and the residual funds 139 

are no longer necessary. 140 

 141 
Sewer Fund: Garrett stated that the sewer fund has the same issue as the water fund, whereas there is  142 

lower consumption and revenues are expected to be down by $62,000 than projected. She stated that the 143 

reduction will be offset by the one-time capital funding that was unused. 144 



 

CC Minutes 03‐15‐16 

 145 
Parks Capital Improvement Fund: Garrett stated that the improvements at Victory Park will be largely 146 

funded by RAMP grants and CDBG grants. She stated that there will be a reduction of $46,000 that can 147 

be used for other parks projects. 148 

Garrett stated that there is an adjustment in the Victory Park Project to keep in line with the actual cost of 149 

the project bid.  150 

 151 

Council Member Shupe asked for a clarification on the fleet costs. Hanson stated that the City is 152 

budgeting for 3 additional vehicles this year over what was anticipated for this roll cycle. Garrett noted 153 

that fleet comes out of different funds depending on what the vehicle is being used for. 154 

Hanson stated that the Admin vehicle and Planning vehicle will be taken out of the general fund. He 155 

stated that Public Works trucks come out of the water, sewer, or street funds. Council Member Shupe 156 

asked why the City is not leasing the vehicles. Hanson stated that the City buys the vehicles outright and 157 

sells the vehicles at the end of the 2 years. He stated that the City receives most of the money back at the 158 

time of sale. Hanson stated that per year, the lease is more expensive on a lease than outright ownership. 159 

Council Member Shupe stated that he understands the benefit of turning over the vehicles, but asked if 160 

having the funds up front and putting it back into the budget would garner interest. Garrett stated that it 161 

would draw some interest. Council Member Shupe asked if having the funds available to be put into 162 

other budget items outweighs the benefits of owning the vehicles outright. 163 

Council Member Brown stated that he would like to see a review of the data concerning the fleet 164 

program. He stated that he would be interested in how many miles are on the vehicles after 2 years. 165 

Hanson stated that the analysis run on the old fleet proved that once the warranty runs out on the vehicle, 166 

it is harder to sale the vehicle. 167 

 168 

Mayor Allen opened the public hearing at 6:39 p.m. 169 

 170 
Resident Ulis Gardiner- 4608 S 450 W- stated that he would like to know how many vehicles the City 171 

has and the types of equipment used. He would like to know where the fleet equipment is being used. 172 

Hanson stated that he will be happy to speak with Mr. Gardiner. 173 

 174 

Mayor Allen closed the public hearing at 6:41 p.m. 175 

 176 

7.    CITIZEN COMMENTS 177 
Resident Cathy Dolles- 302 E 5000 S- stated that she is proposing a crosswalk at 5000 South near 178 

Mountain View Apartments. She stated that there are many auto-pedestrian accidents near the area. She 179 

stated that she is working with the media and law enforcement agencies to bring awareness to the 180 

problem and possibly stop accidents from happening. 181 

 182 
Resident Gary Klema- 429 W 4575 S- stated that he is concerned with rental properties that rent the 183 

basements out on their homes. He would like for people to understand that these are illegal duplexes. He 184 

suggested possible articles in the newsletter clarifying rental property guidelines. He stated that some 185 

people have a rental business license but are renting a single as two. 186 

 187 

 188 

8.     COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN 189 

       COMMENTS 190 
Hanson stated that staff and Council have been very responsive to auto pedestrian accidents in the City. 191 

He stated that there are some requirements as to where it is legal and illegal to put in crosswalks. Hanson 192 



 

CC Minutes 03‐15‐16 

stated that the City is making adjustments to the configuration of the area that Ms. Dolles spoke of and 193 

will look at requirements and regulations concerning crosswalks in that area. Hanson stated that he will 194 

speak with Ms. Dolles about future plans in the area. Hanson noted that regulations forbid the City from 195 

placing crosswalks within a certain distance from state roads. 196 

 197 
Hanson stated that there are some homes that are grandfathered in to rent as a duplex. He stated that some 198 

of the homes are legal to rent the basement apartments. He stated that those that are illegal are watched 199 

for through licensing and code enforcement. Once it is brought to the City attention, the homes are 200 

managed appropriately. Council Member Monsen stated that he feels that there needs to be some kind of 201 

control on the legal duplexes to make sure that they are safe. 202 

 203 

9.    NEW BUSINESS            204 

      9.1  MOTION/RESOLUTION 16-03: TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016  205 

           BUDGET     206 

 207 

Motion by Council Member Jensen 208 

Seconded by Council Member Barker 209 

To approve resolution 16-03 to 210 

Amend the fiscal year 2015-2016 budget 211 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 212 

Roll call vote 213 

 214 

      9.2  MOTION/RESOLUTION 16-04: TO APPROVE THE YEARLY WASTE WATER  215 

           PLANNING PROGRAM REPORT 216 
Harris stated that this is a fairly new program and this is the first report for the City of its kind.  217 

He stated that the report looks over funding for future expansion as well as if there are any sanitary  218 

sewer overflows. It also monitors the qualifications and certifications of staff. He stated that the  219 

system is run very well. He noted that there were 25 points against the city because the City does not take  220 

out capital funding plans for 25 years as suggested. . Harris stated that the report is due every year. Harris  221 

stated that the resolution is required to make sure that the Council is aware as to what is being reported to  222 

the State. Harris stated that the report is not related to the Storm Water audit.  223 

 224 

Motion by Council Member Monsen 225 

Seconded by Council Member Jensen 226 

To approve Resolution 16-04 to approve 227 

The Yearly Wastewater Planning Program Report 228 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 229 

Roll call vote  230 
. 231 
 232 

      9.3  PRESENTATION: SHERIFF’S OFFICE MONTHLY REPORT                233 
Hanson stated that Lt. Talbot is unable to attend the meeting to present the report. Hanson stated that he 234 

has had requests from some Council Members to change the monthly report to a quarterly report. Council 235 

Member Monsen stated that he would like to keep the report monthly. Council Member Brown stated that 236 

the reports are redundant and he does not see a lot of value in the monthly report. He stated that Council 237 

is kept informed of any pressing details. Council Member Jensen agreed. Council Member Shupe stated 238 

that he would like to have reports from the detective/investigation division. He would like to see what 239 

types of cases the City has, how they are cleared, and how they are being followed up on. He would like 240 



 

CC Minutes 03‐15‐16 

the communication on the review of the cases quarterly. The Mayor agreed with Council Member Barker 241 

to have the reports monthly for information, but to have them report to Council quarterly. 242 

 243 

      9.4  MOTION: TO CHANGE THE APRIL 2016 MEETING SCHEDULE      244 
The Council will be attending a Utah League of Cities and Towns training in St. George and City 245 

Manager Hanson will also be out of town for training. 246 

 247 

Motion by Council Member Shupe 248 

Seconded by Council Member Jensen 249 

To cancel the April 5, 2016 regular meeting 250 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 251 
             252 

 253 
10.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 254 
        * Council Member Jensen spoke about the Mosquito District and noted that information  255 

           about the Zika virus is available on the County Mosquito Abatement website. 256 

 257 

        * Council Member asked if the citation revenue bill passed, stating that it would affect the City if  258 

           it did. Mayor Allen stated that he does not think that it passed. 259 

      260 
       261 

11.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 262 
* Hanson stated that the Sheriff’ Office will be doing a full lock out/reunification drill at T.H.Bell within 263 

the next few months. 264 

 265 

*Hanson stated that he and staff had a meeting with the FEMA mitigation grants department concerning 266 

a grant for removing the old Public Works Shop and rebuilding the parking lots for water mitigation 267 

purposes. He stated that he does not believe that purchase of the land would be available through FEMA 268 

grants.  269 

 270 

*Hanson stated that the City will be awarded the CDBG grant for Fire Equipment. 271 

 272 

*Hanson stated that the Kane County Finance Director is under investigation for fraud. Hanson stated 273 

that everything that our City does has checks and balances and fraud cannot occur.  274 
 275 
12.     UPCOMING EVENTS    276 
        March 31st : Planning Commission Meeting 6:00 p.m. 277 

         April 5th : Council Meeting to be cancelled 278 

         April 6-8: ULCT Conference 279 

         April 19th: City Council Work Session 5:00 p.m. 280 

         April 19th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 281 
 282 
 283 
13.     MOTION: ADJOURN INTO CLOSED SESSION  284 
The Council Adjourned into closed session to discuss: 285 

o Strategy sessions to discuss the purchase, exchange, or lease of real property when public 286 

discussion of the transaction would disclose the appraisal or estimate value of the property 287 

under consideration or prevent the public body from completing the transaction on the best 288 

possible terms. 289 



 

CC Minutes 03‐15‐16 

Motion by Council Member Monsen 290 

Seconded by Council Member Brown 291 

To adjourn into closed session 292 

Approved unanimously (5-0) 293 

Roll call vote  294 
 295 
14.    ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN  296 
Mayor Allen adjourned the Closed Session and regular meeting at 7:51 p.m. 297 

 298 
 299 
 300 
__________________________________________          __________________________________ 301 
Date approved                                                City Recorder 302 
 303 
 304 


